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Pat McCrory 
Governor 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Charles Plummer 
Registered Agent for Reagents Holdings, LLC 
PO Box 2407 46 
Charlotte, NC 28224-0746 

October 1, 2014 

RE: Short Form Compliance Order with Administrative Penalty 
Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
Docket# 2014-047 

Dear Mr. Plummer: 

John E. Skvarla, Ill 
Secretary 

You are listed with the Secretary of State's Office as the registered agent for Reagents Holdings, LLC formerly 
known as Reagents, Inc .. Enclosed is a Short Form Compliance Order with an Administrative Penalty issued to 
Reagents Holdings, LLC. If you have any questions, please contact Ann Preston at (919} 707-8226. 

Respectfully, 

Julie S. Woosley, Chief 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Enclosures: Short Form Compliance Order with Administrative Penalty and Penalty Summary Worksheets 

cc: Peter Ricca, Camden Holdings of NC, L.L.C., Owner 
Marcus Plescia, Mecklenburg County Health Director 
Chipp Bailey, Mecklenburg County Sheriff 
Dena Diorio, Mecklenburg County Manager 
Daniel Gladfelter, City of Charlotte Mayor 
Jon Hannan, City of Charlotte Fire Chief 
Mark Auten, Mecklenburg County Chief Fire Marshal 
Rodney Monroe, City of Charlotte Police Chief 
Ron Carlee, City of Charlotte Manager 
Angela Edmonds, Mooresville Regional Office Manager 
Laurie Benton Digaetano, EPA Region 4 
Central Files - Enforcement 

1646 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1646 
Phone: 919-707-8200 I Internet: http://portal.ncdenr.org/web/wm 

An Equal Opportun1ty I Affirmallve Acllon Employer - Made 1n part by recycled paper 





Pat McCrory 
Governor 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Michael Watson, Plant Manager 
Reagents Holdings, LLC 
4 7 46 Sweden Rd 
Charlotte, NC 28273 

October 1, 2014 

RE: Short Form Compliance Order with Administrative Penalty 
Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
Docket# 2014-047 

Dear Mr. Watson: 

John E. Skvarla, Ill 
Secretary 

Enclosed is a Short Form Compliance Order with Administrative Penalty ("Compliance Order") issued to 
Reagents Holdings, LLC for certain violations of the North Carol ina Solid Waste Management Act, N.C.G.S. 
Chapter 130A, Article 9 (the "Act"), and the North Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Rules, 15A NCAC 
Subchapter 13A (the "Rules"). The Compliance Order describes the violations at your facility. 

As a result of the violations of the Act and the Rules, pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 130A-22(a), an administrative 
penalty of $25,400.00 is imposed in the Compliance Order. Reagents Holdings, LLC may contest this 
Compliance Order by filing a written petition for a contested case hearing within 30 days of receipt of this 
Compliance Order in accordance with N.C.G.S. §§ 130A-22(e), 1508-23(a) and 1508-23.2. See the section 
entitled "Notice of Rights to a Contested Case" in the attached Compliance Order. In addition, Reagents 
Holdings, LLC is assessed $1 ,434.04 for investigative and inspection cost associated with the 
assessment of the civil penalty pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 130A-22(j). These investigation and inspection cost 
assessments are due within 60 days and are not contestable in the "Notice of Rights to a Contested 
Case" provision. 

Please be advised that the Department of Environment and Natural Resources has implemented a department
wide policy to release all penalties assessed against facilities to the media. Therefore, the name of your company 
and the penalty amount that has been assessed against the facility may be released to the media. 

If no contested case petition is filed, the administrative penalty must be paid by Reagents Holdings, LLC 
within 60 days of receipt of the Compliance Order by certified check or money order, payable to the 
Division of Waste Management, and mailed to: 

JulieS. Woosley, Chief 
Hazardous Waste Section 
1646 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1646 

1646 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1646 
Phone: 919-707-8200 I Internet: http://portal.ncdenr.org/web/wm 

An Equal Opportunity Affirmative Act,on Employer - Made m part by recycled paper 



If you desire to schedule an informal conference to discuss the Compliance Order, please contact Ann Preston at 
(919) 707-8226. (Scheduling an informal conference will not extend the time limit for filing a contested case 
petition.) 

Respectfully, 

Julie S. Woosley, Chief 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Enclosures: Short Form Compliance Order with Administrative Penalty and Penalty Summary Worksheets 

cc: Peter Ricca. Camden Holdings of NC, L.L.C., Owner 
Marcus Plescia, Mecklenburg County Health Director 
Chipp Bailey, Mecklenburg County Sheriff 
Dena Diorio, Mecklenburg County Manager 
Daniel Gladfelter, City of Charlotte Mayor 
Jon Hannan, City of Charlotte Fire Chief 
Mark Auten, Mecklenburg County Chief Fire Marshal 
Rodney Monroe, City of Charlotte Police Chief 
Ron Carlee, City of Charlotte Manager 
Angela Edmonds, Mooresville Regional Office Manager 
Laurie Benton Digaetano, EPA Region 4 
Central Files - Enforcement 



North Carolina Department of Environment 
and Natural Resources 

Division of Waste Management 
Hazardous Waste Section 

In Re: Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
Docket# 2014-047 

) SHORT FORM COMPLIANCE ORDER 
) WITH ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY 

This Short Form Compliance Order with Admin istrative Penalty ("Compliance Order") is issued by the 
North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources, Division of Waste 
Management under the North Carolina Solid Waste Management Act, N.C.G.S. Chapter 130A, 
Article 9 {the "Act"), and the North Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Rules, 15A NCAC 
Subchapter 13A (the "Rules"). Based upon information received by the Division of Waste 
Management, the Division of Waste Management has determined that Reagents Holdings, LLC 
violated certain requirements of the Act and Rules as set forth in this Compliance Order. 

STATEMENT OF FACTS AND LAW 

1. The North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources ("the Department") is 
required to enforce the Act and the Rules, which govern the management of hazardous waste. 
This authority, including the authority to assess and recover administrative penalties in 
accordance with N.C.G.S. § 130A-22, has been delegated to the Director of the Division of 
Waste Management ("the Division"). The Director has issued a sub-delegation of this authority, 
including the authority to assess and recover administrative penalties for violations of the Act 
and Rules, to the Chief of the Hazardous Waste Section, JulieS. Woosley. 

2. The United States Environmental Protection Agency has authorized North Carolina to operate 
the State Hazardous Waste Program in accordance with the Act and the Rules, in lieu of the 
federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA") program. 

3. Reagents Holdings, LLC ("Reagents") is a foreign limited liability company formed under the laws 
of New Jersey and authorized to transact business in North Carolina. The Reagents site is 
owned by Camden Holdings of NC, L.L.C. ("Camden"), a domestic limited liability company, 
Reagents and Camden are "persons" as defined in N.C.G.S. § 130A-290(a)(22). 

4. Reagents is located at 4746 Sweden Road , Charlotte, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina. The 
facility is a chemical repackaging facility that sells its products to various industries including labs, 
paper and textile manufacturers, and petrol industries. The facility blends non-hazardous, 
flammable, and other hazardous chemicals prior to repackaging. 

5. On February 28, 2014 Ms. Heather Goldman, Environmental Senior Specialist with the 
Hazardous Waste Section, conducted a Compliance Evaluation Inspection (CEI). 

6. On June 22, 2009 Reagents notified the Division as a small quantity generator (SQG). During 
the CEI inspection Reagents was inspected as a SQG. A "Small Quantity Generator" is a 
generator that generates greater than 1 00 kilograms but less than 1000 kilograms of 
hazardous waste in a calendar month. Based on a review of records and information 
provided during the inspection, it was determined that the facility acted as a Large Quantity 
Generator (LQG) during the months of January and February 2014. Reagents was required 
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to comply with all rules applicable as noted in 40 CFR Part 262, as adopted in 15A NCAC 13A 
.0107. 

7. Reagents maintains two (2) less than 180-day hazardous waste storage areas: Packaging 
(Building 4746) and Flammable Storage Room. Reagents has other areas were the facility stores 
hazardous wastes: Packaging (4746), Non-Hazardous Blending Area, Flammable Materials 
Blending Area, Hazardous Material Blending Area, and Universal Waste area. The hazardous 
waste generated by Reagents is defined by EPA Hazardous Waste Identification Numbers D001 , 
D002, D022, D024, F003, F005, U002, U003, U024, U031 , U052, U080, U1 02, U117 and U122. 

8. As a result of the February 28, 2014 CEI the Division has determined that Reagents violated the 
following Rules: 

a. 40 CFR 261 .1(c)(8): 

i. Pursuant to 261.1 (c)( 8 ), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A . 01 06( a), a 
material is "accumulated speculatively" if it is accumulated before being recycled. 
A material is not accumulated speculatively, however, if the person accumulating it 
can show that the material is potentially recyclable and has a feasible means of 
being recycled; and that-- during the calendar year (commencing on January 1) 
the amount of material that is recycled, or transferred to a different site for 
recycling , equals at least 75 percent by weight or volume of the amount of that 
material accumulated at the beginning of the period. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 261.1 (c)(8), in that the facility speculatively 
accumulated silver waste. During the inspection, the facility was unable to provide 
information to demonstrate that silver waste material that is generated in the 
laboratory is potentially recyclable. The facility also did not recycle 75% by weight 
or volume of the amount of that silver waste material accumulated from the 
beginning of each year since January 1, 2009. Although the facility has continued 
to accumulate the silver waste, the facility has not attempted to recover the silver 
since 2008. It was explained by Mr. Brian Vinciguera - Chemist that approximately 
700 grams of silver waste were in a 3.5-gallon container. 

b. 40 CFR 261.2(f): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 261 .2(f), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .01 06(a), 
Respondents in actions to enforce regulations implementing subtitle C of RCRA 
who raise a claim that a certain material is not a solid waste, or is conditionally 
exempt from regu lation, must demonstrate that there is a known market or 
disposition for the material, and that they meet the terms of the exclusion or 
exemption. In doing so, they must provide appropriate documentation (such as 
contracts showing that a second person uses the material as an ingredient in a 
production process) to demonstrate that the material is not a waste, or is exempt 
from regulation. In addition, owners or operators of facilities claiming that they 
actually are recycling materials must show that they have the necessary 
equipment to do so. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 261.2(f), in that the facility failed to document claims 
that a material is not a solid waste or conditionally exempt from regulation. Ms. 
Kristy Bierschbach explained that the last shipment of silver waste was sent to a 
facility for silver recovery in 2008 and the receiving facility denied the material. The 
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material was then sent for disposal as a hazardous waste in lieu of recycling. 
During the inspection, Ms. Kristy Bierschbach was unable to identify a silver 
recovery facility that would accept the silver waste. No other documentation or 
information was provided for the silver waste. 

c. 40 CFR 262.11: 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.11, adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .01 07(a), a 
person who generates a solid waste, as defined in 40 CFR 261 .2, must determine 
if that waste is a hazardous waste using the following method: 

(a) He should first determine if the waste is excluded from regulation under 40 
CFR 261.4. 

(b) He must then determine if the waste is listed as a hazardous waste in 
Subpart 0 of 40 CFR Part 261 . 

(c) For purposes of compliance with 40 CFR part 268, or if the waste is not 
listed in subpart 0 of 40 CFR part 261, the generator must then determine 
whether the waste is identified in subpart C of 40 CFR part 261 by either: 
(1) Testing the waste according to the methods set forth in Subpart C of 

40 CFR Part 261 , or according to an equivalent method approved by 
the Administrator under 40 CFR 260.21; or 

(2) Applying knowledge of the hazard characteristic of the waste in light of 
the materials or the processes used. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.11, in that during the inspection Ms. Kristy 
Bierschbach indicated that the laboratory sink waste that is collected in a 275-
gallon container in the Packaging building was non-hazardous. When asked about 
the basis for this statement, Ms. Kristy Bierschbach failed to provide an analytical 
waste profile, and failed to articulate a claim of generator knowledge of the 

characteristics of the waste in light of the processes used to produce the waste. 
Ms. Kristy Bierschbach was unable to explain what the pH of the waste is before it 
is neutralized. On March 13, 2014, Mr. Michael Watson explained by e-mail that 
logs are not kept of what is poured down the laboratory sink and into the container. 
No waste profile or other information regarding a waste determination was 
provided. Also, Ms. Kristy Bierschbach indicated that the off specification 
chemica ls that are poured into a 1 00-gallon container in the Hazardous Materials 
Blending area were non-hazardous. When asked about the basis for this 
statement Ms. Kristy Bierschbach failed to provide an analytical waste profile, and 
failed to articulate a claim of generator knowledge of the characteristics of the 
waste in light of the processes used to produce the waste. Upon inquiry of the pH 
of the waste Ms. Kristy Bierschbach asserted without further explanation that the 
pH would be between 2 and 12.5. No waste profile or other information regarding a 

waste determination was provided. 

d. 40 CFR 262.20(a)(1 ): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.20(a)(1 ), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.01 07(b ), a generator who transports, or offers for transport a hazardous waste for 

3 Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 

Docket# 2014-047 



offsite treatment, storage, or disposal, or a treatment, storage, and disposal facility 
who offers for transport a rejected hazardous waste load, must prepare a Manifest 
(OMB Control number 2050-0039) on EPA Form 8700-22, and, if necessary, EPA 
Form 8700-22A, according to the instructions included in the appendix to Part 262. 

1. Pursuant to Appendix to Part 262 Item 1, adopted by reference at 
15A NCAC 13A .01 07U), the facility must enter the generator's US 
EPA twelve digit identification number on U.S. EPA Form 8700-22; 

2. Pursuant to Appendix to Part 262 Item 3, adopted by reference at 
15A NCAC 13A .01 07(j), the facility must enter a phone number for 
which emergency response information can be obtained in the event 
of an incident during transportation on U.S. EPA Form 8700-22; and 

3. Pursuant to Appendix to Part 262 Item 15, adopted by reference at 
15A NCAC 13A .01 07U), the facility must enter a generator date for 
the waste minimization certification statement on U.S. EPA Form 
8700-22. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.20(a)(1 ), in that they failed to enter the generator's 
US EPA twelve digit identification number on U.S. EPA Form 8700-22. The follow 
manifest did not include the generator US EPA twelve digit identification number: 

• On December 13, 2013, the facility shipped 800 pounds of hazardous waste 
to Ecoflo, Inc. and failed to enter a Generator ID on the 8700-22 Form, 
hazardous waste manifest 0005685245JJK. "NCCESQG" was listed in the 
Generator ID Number field; 

• On December 27, 3013, the facility shipped 805 pounds of hazardous waste 
to Ecoflo, Inc. and failed to enter a Generator ID on the 8700-22 Form, 
hazardous waste manifest 008533229JJK. "NCCESQG" was listed in the 
Generator ID Number field ; 

• On February 11 , 2014, the facility shipped 7,200 pounds of hazardous 
waste to Ecoflo, Inc. and failed to enter a Generator ID on the 8700-22 
Form, hazardous waste manifest 000503607WAS. "NCCESQG" was listed 
in the Generator ID Number field; 

• On February 17, 2014, the facility shipped 14,600 pounds of hazardous 
waste to Ecoflo, Inc. and failed to enter a Generator ID and the Emergency 
Response Phone field was blank on the 8700-22 Form, hazardous waste 
manifest 000503615WAS. "NCCESQG" was listed in the Generator ID 
Number field; 

• On February 18, 2014, the facility shipped 12,850 pounds of hazardous 
waste to Ecoflo, Inc. and failed to enter a Generator ID, the Emergency 
Response Phone field was blank and failed to enter a generator date for the 
waste minimization certification statement on the 8700-22 Form, hazardous 
waste manifest 000503614WAS. "NCCESQG" was listed in the Generator 
ID Number field; and 
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• On February 20, 2014, the facility shipped 21,465 pounds of hazardous 
waste to Ecoflo, Inc. and failed to enter a Generator ID and the Emergency 
Response Phone field was blank on the 8700-22 Form, hazardous waste 
manifest 000503606WAS. "NCCESQG" was listed in the Generator ID 
Number field . 

e. 40 CFR 262.34(c)(1 )(i): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34(c)(1)(i), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.01 07( c), a generator may accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste 
or one quart of acutely hazardous waste listed in§ 261.31 or§ 261.33(e) in 
containers at or near any point of generation where wastes initially accumulate, 
which is under the control of the operator of the process generating the waste, 
without a permit or interim status and without complying with paragraph (a) or (d) 
of§ 262.34 provided he complies with Sections 265.171 , 265.172, and 265.1 73(a). 

Pursuant to 40 CFR 265.173(a), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.011 O(i), a container holding hazardous waste must always be closed during 
storage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.34(c)(1 )(i), in that the facility failed to keep satellite 
containers closed when not adding or removing waste. During the inspection, there 
were two (2) 4-liter satellite containers accumulating waste in the laboratory that 
were open and one (1) 100-gallon satellite 0002 container accumulating waste in 
the Hazardous Materials Blending area was open. 

f. 40 CFR 262.34(d)(3): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34(d)(3), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.01 07( c), a generator who generates greater than 100 kilograms but less than 
1,000 kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month may accumulate 
hazardous waste on-site for 180 days or less without a permit or without having 
interim status, provided that the generator complies with the requirements of 
§ 265.201 in subpart J and Part 265. 

1. Pursuant to 40 CFR 265.201 (c)( 4 ), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 
13A .011 OU),except as noted in paragraph (d) of this section, generators 
who accumulate between 100 and 1,000 kg/mo of hazardous in tanks 
must inspect, where present the construction materials of the tank at 
least weekly to detect corrosion or leaking of fixtures or seams. 

2. Pursuant to 40 CFR 265.201(c)(5), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 
13A .011 OU),except as noted in paragraph (d) of this section, generators 
who accumulate between 100 and 1,000 kg/mo of hazardous in tanks 
must inspect, where present the construction materials of the area 
immediately surrounding discharge confinement structures (e.g. dikes) 
at least weekly to detect erosion or obvious signs of leakage (e.g. wet 
spots or dead vegetation). 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.34(d)(3), in that the facility failed to inspect at least 
weekly the construction materials of the tank,and area immediately surrounding 
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discharge confinement structures to detect erosion or obvious signs of leakage of 
the 2,000-gallon tank in the Flammable Materials Blending Area. 

g. 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.01 07( c), a generator who generates greater than 100 kilograms but less than 
1000 kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month may accumulate 
hazardous waste on-site for 180 days or less without a permit or without having 
interim status, provided that the generator complies with the requirements of 
paragraphs (a)(2) and (a)(3) of§ 262.34, and the requirements of subpart C of part 
265. 

Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34(a)(2), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 
13A .0107(c), the date upon which each period of accumulation 
begins must be clearly marked and visible for inspection on each 
container; 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4), in that the facility failed to clearly mark the 
accumulation start date on containers in the less than 180-day hazardous waste 
storage area. 

• During the inspection, 21 hazardous waste containers, stored in the 
Packaging Building's less than 180-day hazardous waste storage area, 
were not marked with an accumulation start date. There was one (1) red 
piece of paper lying on the containers that had a date of 10/17/2013 with 
the comments to dispose of the phenol material. Ms. Kristy Bierschbach 
used this paper to establish how long all of the hazardous waste containers 
had been stored in the area; 

• During the inspection there was one (1) 55-gallon hazardous waste storage 
container, stored in the Flammable Storage Room's less than 180-day 
hazardous waste storage area, with no start accumulation date marked on 
the container; 

• During the inspection there was one (1) 275-gallon hazardous waste 
storage container stored in Packaging with no start accumulation date 
marked on the container; and 

• During the inspection there was one (1) approximately 2,000-gallon 
hazardous waste storage tank located in the Flammable Materials Blending 
Area with no start accumulation date marked on the tank. 

h. 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.0107(c), a generator who generates greater than 100 kilograms but less than 
1000 kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month may accumulate 
hazardous waste on-site for 180 days or less without a permit or without having 
interim status, provided that the generator complies with the requirements of 
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paragraphs (a)(2) and (a)(3) of§ 262.34, and the requirements of subpart C of part 
265. 

Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34(a)(3), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 
13A .0107(c), while being accumulated on-site, each container and 
tank labeled with the words, "Hazardous Waste"; and 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4), in that the facility failed to clearly mark or 
label eachcontainers and a tank with the words, "Hazardous Waste. 

• During the inspection, 21 hazardous waste containers, stored in the 
Packaging building 's less than 180-day hazardous waste storage area, 
were not marked or labeled with the words "Hazardous Waste"; 

• During the inspection, one (1) 55-gallon hazardous waste storage 
container, stored in the Flammable Storage Room, was not marked or 
labeled with the words "Hazardous Waste"; and 

• During the inspection there was one (1) approximately 2,000-gallon 
hazardous waste storage tank located in the Flammable Materials Blending 
Area were not marked or labeled with the words "Hazardous Waste". 

i. 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34( d)( 4 ), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.0107(c), a generator who generates greater than 100 ki lograms but less than 
1000 kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month may accumulate 
hazardous waste on-site for 180 days or less without a permit or without having 
interim status, provided that the generator complies with the requirements of 
paragraphs (a)(2) and (a)(3) of§ 262.34, and the requirements of subpart C of part 
265. 

1. Pursuant to 40 CFR 265.34(a), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 
13A .0110(c), whenever hazardous waste is being poured, mixed, 
spread, or otherwise handled, all personnel involved in the operation 
must have immediate access to an internal alarm or emergency 
communication device, either directly or through visual or voice 
contact with another employee; and 

2. Pursuant to 40 CFR 265.37(a)(4), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 
13A .011 0( c), the owner or operator must attempt to make 
arrangements, as appropriate for the type of waste handled at his 
facility and the potential need for the services, to familiarize local 
hospitals with the properties of hazardous waste handled at the 
facility and the types of injuries or illnesses which could result from 
fires, explosions, or releases at the facility. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4), in that the facility failed to: 
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• maintain immediate access to communications or alarm systems in a less 
than 180-day hazardous waste storage area. During the inspection there 
were no pull alarms or telephones posted or allowed in the Flammable 
Storage Room's less than 180-day hazardous waste storage area. Mr. 
Michael Watson explained that due to the requirement for intrinsically safe 
equipment there are no telephones or pull alarms in this room. Mr. Michael 
Watson and Ms. Kristy Bierschbach were unable to explain how 
emergency assistance is summoned from the Flammable Storage Room in 
the less than 180-day hazardous waste storage area; and 

• make emergency arrangements with a hospital. Mr. Michael Watson and 
Ms. Kristy Bierschbach explained that they had not requested emergency 
arrangements with a hospital. 

j. 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.0107(c), a generator who generates greater than 100 kilograms but less than 
1000 kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month may accumulate 
hazardous waste on-site for 180 days or less without a permit or without having 
interim status, provided that the generator complies with the requirements of 
paragraphs (a)(2) and (a)(3) of§ 262.34, and the requirements of subpart C of part 
265. 

Pursuant to 40 CFR 265.17 4, adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.011 O(i), at least weekly, the owner or operator must inspect areas where 
containers are stored . 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4), in that the facility failed to inspect areas 
where containers are stored at least weekly. During the inspection, Ms. Kristy 
Bierschbach explained that the facility has not been conducting weekly 
inspections. The area not inspected was the Hazardous Waste Storage Area in the 
Flammable Storage Room Area. 

k. 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.01 07( c), a generator who generates greater than 100 kilograms but less than 
1000 kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month may accumulate 
hazardous waste on-site for 180 days or less without a permit or without having 
interim status, provided that the generator complies with the requirements of 
paragraphs (a)(2) and (a)(3) of§ 262.34, the requirements of subpart C of part 
265, and with all applicable requirements under 40 CFR part 268. 

Pursuant to 40 CFR 268.7(a)(8), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.0112(a), a generator of hazardous waste must determine if the waste has to 
be treated before it can be land disposed. Generators must retain on-site a 
copy of all notices, certifications, waste analysis data, and other 
documentation produced pursuant to § 268.7 for at least three years from the 
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date that the waste that is the subject of such documentation was last sent to 
on-site or off-site treatment, storage, or disposal. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.34(d)(4), in that the facility failed to maintain a copy 
of the Land Disposal Restrictions Form for hazardous waste streams sent to 
Ecoflo Inc. During the inspection, Land Disposal Restriction Forms were not 
available for review for the following wastes: Waste Flammable Liquids (Ether, 
Chloroform) D001 , D022, D002, U117, U122; Waste Sodium Nitrite D001 ; Waste 
Flammable Liquids Corrosive (Methanol, Acetic Acid) D001 ; Waste Toxic Liquid 
Organic (Dichloroemethane, Methanol) U080; and Waste Corrosive Liquid 
Flammable (Acetic Acid, Iodine Monochloride) D002 that were sent to Ecoflo Inc. 
(NCD980842132) on December 27, 2013, Manifest Tracking Number 008533229. 

I. 40 CFR 262.34(d)(5)(iii): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 262.34(d)(5)(iii), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.0107(c), a generator must ensure that all employees are thoroughly familiar with 
proper waste handling and emergency procedures, relevant to their responsibilities 
during normal facility operations and emergencies. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 262.34(d)(5)(iii), in that the facility failed to ensure that 
all employees are thoroughly familiar with proper waste handling and emergency 
procedures, relevant to their responsibilities during normal facility operations and 
emergencies. Mr. Michael Watson explained that he had not received hazardous 
waste training. Mr. Michael Watson signed hazardous waste manifests in 
December 2013 and February 2014. Tracy Cannon also signed hazardous waste 
manifests and Ms. Kristy Bierschbach explained that Ms. Cannon had not received 
hazardous waste training. 

m. 40 CFR 273.13(d)(1): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 273.13(d)(1 ), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A 
.0119(b ), a small quantity handler of universal waste must contain any lamp in 
containers or packages that are structurally sound, adequate to prevent breakage, 
and compatible with the contents of the lamps. Such containers and packages 
must remain closed and must lack evidence of leakage, spillage or damage that 
could cause leakage under reasonably foreseeable conditions. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 273.13( d)( 1 ), in that the facility failed to maintain used 
lamps in a closed container. Broken lamps were observed in one ( 1) container and 
there were approximately 30 used lamps stored in two (2) open boxes in the 
Finished Product Warehouse. 

n. 40 CFR 273.14(e): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 273.14( e), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0119(b ), 
a small quantity handler of universal waste must label or mark universal waste 
containers to identify the type of universal waste, including that each lamp or a 
container or package in which such lamps are contained must be labeled or 
marked clearly with one of the following phrases: "Universal Waste-Lamp(s)," or 
"Waste Lamp(s)," or "Used Lamp(s)." 
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ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 273.14(e), in that the facility failed to accumulate used 
lamps in a labeled container. During the inspection there were approximately 30 
used lamps stored in two (2) unlabeled boxes in the Finished Product Warehouse. 

o. 40 CFR 273.15( c): 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 273.15(c), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0119(b), 
a small quantity handler of universal waste who accumulates universal waste must 
be able to demonstrate the length of time that the universal waste has been 
accumulated from the date it becomes a waste or is received. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 273.15(c), in that the facility failed to demonstrate the 
storage time for the used lamps. During the inspection, there were used lamps 
stored in the Finished Product Warehouse. Mr. Michael Watson explained that Hill 
Electric picks up the used lamps for recycling, but was unsure of the last time Hill 
Electric picked up the used lamps. 

p. 40 CFR 273.16: 

i. Pursuant to 40 CFR 273.16, adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0119(b ), a 
small quantity handler of universal waste must inform all employees who handle or 
have responsibility for managing universal waste. The information must describe 
proper handling and emergency procedures appropriate to the type(s) of universal 
waste handled at the facility. 

ii. Reagents violated 40 CFR 273.16, in that the facility failed to provide universal 
waste training. During the inspection used lamps were stored in the Finished 
Product Warehouse. Mr. Michael Watson explained that the facility had not 
provided universal waste training. 

q. 15A NCAC 13A .011 O(c): 

i. Pursuant to 15A NCAC 13A.011 0( c), the owner or operator must maintain aisle 
space of at least 2 feet to allow the unobstructed movement of personnel, fire 
prevention equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment to 
any area of facility operation in an emergency. 

ii. Reagents violated 15A NCAC 13A.011 0( c), in that the facility failed to maintain 2 
feet of aisle space. Sixteen hazardous waste storage containers stored in the 
Packaging Building were not accessible for inspection due to the lack of aisle 
space. 

r. N.C.G.S. § 130A-294.1(e): 

i. Pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 130A-294.1 (e), any person who generates either one 
kilogram or more of any acute hazardous waste as listed in 40 C.F.R. § 261 .30(d) 
or § 261.33( e) as revised 1 July 1987, or 1000 kilograms or more of hazardous 
waste, in any calendar month during the year beginning 1 July and ending 30 June 
shall pay an annual fee of one thousand four hundred dollars ($1 ,400). 
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ii. Reagents violated N.C.G.S. § 130A-294.1 (e), in that the facility failed to pay the 
required LOG fee. Based on a record review and information provided during the 
inspection, it was determined that the faci lity acted as a Large Quantity Generator 
during the months of January and February 2014. Hazardous waste manifests 
documented that the facility shipped more than 13,228 pounds of hazardous waste 
during February 2014. Ms. Bierschbach explained that during January 2014 
outside temperatures dropped and caused the main water suppression pipe to 
break in the flammable materials storage building. The secondary containment 
structure filled with water and submerged most of the flammable products that 
were stored in the building. Due to quality assurance procedures, the facility 
decided to manage the impacted products as waste. The amount shipped in a 
calendar month does not validate the facility's generator status as a SQG. On 
April 9, 2014, Reagents paid their balance amount of $1,400.00 for year 2014 for 
generating as a Large Quantity Generator (LOG) during the months of January and 
February 2014. 
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ADMINISTRATIVE PENAL TV 

N.C.G.S. § 130A-22(a) authorizes an administrative penalty of up to $32,500.00 per day for each violation 
of the hazardous waste provisions of the Act, Rules or any order issued pursuant to the hazardous waste 
provisions of the Act. N.C.G.S. § 130A-22(d) sets forth the factors to be considered in determining the 
administrative penalty which include the degree and extent of the harm caused by the violation and the 
cost of rectifying the damage. 

15A NCAC 13B .0702 sets forth specific criteria to be considered in addressing the statutory assessment 
factors which include the type of violation, type of waste involved, duration of the violation, cause of the 
violation, potential effect on public health and the environment, effectiveness of response measures taken 
by the violator. damage to private property and the history of non-compliance. 

After careful consideration of each factor above, penalties are assessed as follows against Reagents for 
the violations set out in this Compliance Order: for the violations set forth in paragraphs B.a ., and b. 
$1 ,650.00; for the violation set forth in paragraph B.c. $6,500.00; for the violations set forth in paragraph 
B.d. $400.00; for the violations set forth in paragraphs B.e., g., h. , j . and q. $6,500.00; for the violations 
set forth in paragraphs B.f., i. and I. $6,500.00; for the violations set for in paragraphs B.m. , n. , o. and p. 
$BOO.OO ; for the violation set forth in paragraph B.k. $BOO.OO; and for violation set forth in paragraph B.r. 
$2,250.00. Accordingly, a total penalty is imposed in the amount of $25,400.00. 
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CONDITIONS FOR CONTINUED OPERATION 

Based upon the foregoing , Reagents is hereby ordered to take the following actions: 

1. Within sixty (60) days submit the amount of the administrative penalty, by certified check or 
money order, and payable to the Division of Waste Management. The payment should be mailed 
to: 

Julie S. Woosley, Chief 
Hazardous Waste Section 
1646 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1646 

2. Reagents shall immediately correct all violations as stated in this Compliance Order. 

3. Within sixty (60) days submit the assessed a cost of $1,434.04 for investigative and inspection 
costs associated with the assessment of the civil penalty by certified check or money order, and 
payable to the Division of Waste Management. The payment should be mailed to: 

Julie S. Woosley, Chief 
Hazardous Waste Section 
1646 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1646 

POTENTIAL CONSEQUENCES OF FAILURE TO COMPLY 

Reagents is hereby advised that, pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 130A-22, each day of continued violation of 
any requirement of the Act or the Rules constitutes a separate violation for which an additional penalty 
of up to $32,500.00 per day may be imposed. If the violation continues Reagents may also be subject 
to further enforcement, including injunctive action, to prohibit any further generation of hazardous waste 
and such further relief as may be necessary to achieve compliance with the Act and Rules. 
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NOTICE OF RIGHT TO FILE CONTESTED CASE PETITION 

Reagents has the right to file a contested case petition regarding a matter of law, material fact, 
requirement, or the penalty set forth in this Compliance Order as allowed by N.C.G.S. § 1508-23. In 
accordance with N.C.G.S. §§ 130A-22(e), 1508-23(a) and 1508-23.2, any petition for a contested case 
hearing must be filed with the Office of Administrative Hearings, 6714 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 
27699-6714, along with the appropriate filing fee set by the Office of Administrative Hearings, within 30 
days of receipt of the Compliance Order. A copy of the petition for a contested case hearing must also 
be served on the Division by sending a copy of the petition to: 

John Evans 
Process Agent for the N.C. Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
1601 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1601 

Additional information concerning the Office of Administrative Hearings, filing fees for a contested case 
petition and the appeal process may be found on the official website for the Office of Administrative 
Hearings, located at www.oah.state.nc.us or by calling (919) 431-3000. 

If a petition for contested case is not timely filed with the Office of Administrative Hearings and served 
on the Department, payment of the administrative penalty becomes due within 60 days after receipt of 
the Compliance Order. If a contested case petition is timely filed and served , payment of the 
administrative penalty is due within 60 days of receipt of a written copy of the final agency decision. If 
payment is not received as required, the Secretary of the Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources shall request the Attorney General to commence a civil action in Superior Court to recover 
the amount of the administrative penalty. 

This the jh+ day of 6rtf>ttr , 2014 

By ~~~ Ju11S>WOO$ei, ief 
Hazardous Waste Section 
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Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Division of Waste Management 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

Regulation(s) Violated : 8.a., and b. of the Compliance Order 
Hazardous waste codes: 0011 Site Information: 
Distance to residences: Approximately 0.4 miles 
Number of people involved: Approximately 24 employees 

15A NCAC 138 .0702 - Civil Penalty Standards: 

Consider: (1) Nature of the violation and degree and extent of harm, including at least the 
following: 

(i) Type of violation: the facility speculatively accumulated silver waste, failed to document 
claims that a material is not a solid waste; 

(ii) Type of waste involved: silver- 0011 ; 

(iii) Duration and gravity of the violation: the facility admitted that it accumulated 
approximately 700 grams of silver waste material since January 1, 2009; 

(iv) Cause (whether resulting from a negligent, reckless or intentional act or 
omission): negligent; 

(v) Potential effect on public health and the environment: yes; 
Media for Exposure: direct contact, air, surface water, ground water and soil; 
Human Health Effect: the adverse effects of chronic exposure to silver are a permanent 
bluish-gray discoloration of the skin (argyria) or eyes (argyrosis) . Most studies discuss 
cases of argyria and argyrosis that have resulted primarily from exposure to the soluble 
forms of silver. Besides argyria and argyrosis, exposure to soluble silver compounds 
may produce other toxic effects, including liver and kidney damage, irritation of the 
eyes, skin, respiratory, and intestinal tract, and changes in blood cells; 
Effect on the Environment: those chemicals are toxic to fish and other aquatic 
organisms when present at high concentrations in water. Most of these chemicals will 
not bioconcentrate in aquatic organisms; 
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Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
201 4-047 

(vi} Effectiveness of responsive measures taken by the violator: on July 8, 2014 a 
letter was submitted stating that the silver waste was manifested off-site; 

(vii} Damage to private property: n/a; 

(2} Cost of rectifying any damage: n/a; 

(3} Amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance: economic benefits less than 
$5,000.00; 

(4} Previous record: n/a; 

ASSESSMENT MATRIX 

Nature and Degree MAJOR 
of Harm 

MODERATE 

MINOR 

Value from Assessment Matrix 
+ 
Multi-week/Event 
# of weeks/events x penalty 
+ 

Compliance History 
+ 1 0% per repeat violation 

Any other notations: 

Total penalty assessed 

Degree of Deviation from Requirements 

MAJOR 

$6,500-1,300 

$2,800-500 

$800-130 

= $1 ,650.00 

= n/a 

= n/a 

= $1,650.00 

2 

MODERATE 

$5,200-1,000 

$2,000-300 

$400-130 

MINOR 

$3,800-700 

$1 ,300-200 

$130 
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Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Division of Waste Management 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

Regulation(s) Violated: B.c. of the Compliance Order 
Site Information: Hazardous waste codes: 0022 and 0028 

Distance to residences : Approximately 0.4 miles 
Number of people involved: Approximately 24 employees 

15A NCAC 138 .0702 - Civil Penalty Standards: 

Consider: (1) Nature of the violation and degree and extent of harm, including at least the 
following: 

(i) Type of violation: the facility failed to make a waste determination for corrosive waste 
collected in 275-gallon container in the laboratory and off-specification chemicals poured 
into 1 00-gallon container in the Hazardous Materials Blending Area; 

(ii) Type of waste involved: 0002 corrosive liquid 0022 for chloroform and 0028 for 1,2-
dichloroethane; 

(iii) Duration and gravity of the violation: duration unknown, degree of deviation and 
nature and degree of harm were evaluated to determine gravity; 

(iv) Cause (whether resulting from a negligent, reckless or intentional act or 
omission): negligent; 

(v) Potential effect on public health and the environment: yes; 
Media for Exposure: direct contact, air, surface water, ground water and soil; 
Human Health Effect: exposure to chloroform in humans causes central nervous 
system depression. At very high levels (40,000 ppm), chloroform exposure may result 
in death, with death due to respiratory or cardiac arrest. Exposure to lower 
concentrations (<1 ,500 ppm) results in dizziness, headache, and tiredness. Chronic 
exposure to chloroform by inhalation in humans is associated with effects on the liver, 
including hepatitis and jaundice, and central nervous system effects, such as 
depression and irritability. At high concentrations these chemicals can cause irritation 
of the eyes, nose, and respiratory tract. They also cause effects on the central nervous 
system, such as headaches, dizziness, weakness, and fatigue.; 
Effect on the Environment: those chemicals are toxic to fish and other aquatic 
organisms when present at high concentrations in water. Most of these chemicals will 
not bioconcentrate in aquatic organisms; 
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Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

(vi) Effectiveness of responsive measures taken by the violator: on July 8, 2014 an 
analytical results for samples taken from the 275-gallon container documents 0028 for 
1 ,2-0ichloroethane and 0022 for Chloroform; 

(vii) Damage to private property: n/a; 

(2) Cost of rectifying any damage: n/a; 

(3) Amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance: economic benefits less than 
$5,000.00; 

(4) Previous record: n/a; 

ASSESSMENT MATRIX 

Nature and Degree MAJOR 
of Harm 

MODERATE 

MINOR 

Value from Assessment Matrix 
+ 
Multi-week/Event 
# of weeks/events x penalty 
+ 

Compliance History 
+ 1 0% per repeat violation 

Any other notations: 

Total penalty assessed 

Degree of Deviation from Requirements 

MAJOR 

$6,500-1 ,300 

$2,800-500 

$800-130 

= $6,500.00 

= n/a 

= n/a 

= $6,500.00 

/o}, }If 
Date 

4 

MODERATE 

$5,200-1 ,000 

$2,000-300 

$400-130 

MINOR 

$3,800-700 

$1,300-200 

$130 
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Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Division of Waste Management 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

Regulation(s) Violated: 8.d. of the Compliance Order 
Site Information: Hazardous waste codes: 0001, 0002, U002, U003, U031, U108, and U122 

Distance to residences: 30 feet to property line 
Number of people involved: 8 employees 

15A NCAC 138 .0702 - Civil Penalty Standards: 

Consider: (1) Nature of the violation and degree and extent of harm, including at least the 
following: 

(i) Type of violation: failed to enter generator's US EPA twelve digit identification 
number, failed to enter a phone number for emergency response information, and 
failed to enter a generator date for the waste minimization certification on U.S. EPA 
Form 8700-22; 

(ii) Type of waste involved: waste flammable liquids (acetone, toluene, acetonitrile, 1-
butanol, formaldehyde, 1 ,4-dioxane, ethyl acetate); 

(iii) Duration and gravity of the violation: duration unknown, degree of deviation and 
nature and degree of harm were evaluated to determine gravity; 

(iv) Cause (whether resulting from a negligent, reckless or intentional act or 
omission): negligent; 

(v) Potential effect on public health and the environment: yes; 
Media for Exposure: chemicals such as acetone and toluene are likely to volatilize 
into the air. They may also get into the soil, sediment, groundwater, and surface 
water; 
Human Health Effect: at high concentrations these chemicals can cause irritation of 
the eyes, nose, and respiratory tract. They also cause effects on the central nervous 
system, such as headaches, dizziness, weakness, and fatigue. Long-term exposure 
to methyl alcohol (Methanol) results in a broad range of ocular effects, such as 
blurred vision and constricted visual fields, while long-term exposure to toluene 
results in effects on color vision , impaired hearing, and changes in motor and sensory 
nerve conduction velocity. Major toxic effects caused by acute formaldehyde 
exposure via inhalation are eye, nose, and throat irritation and effects on the nasal 
cavity. Other effects seen from exposure to high levels of formaldehyde in humans 
are coughing, wheezing , chest pains, and bronchitis. Ingestion exposure to 
formaldehyde in humans has resulted in corrosion of the gastrointestinal tract and 
inflammation and ulceration of the mouth, esophagus, and stomach; 
Effect on the Environment: the chemicals are toxic to fish and other aquatic 
organisms when present at high concentrations in water. Most of these chemicals will 
not bioconcentrate in aquatic organisms. Acute animal tests in rats and rabbits have 
shown formaldehyde to have high acute toxicity from inhalation, oral, and dermal 
exposure; 
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Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

(vi)Effectiveness of responsive measures taken by the violator: on July 8, 2014 a 
letter was submitted stating training occurred on May 1, 2014 to ensure manifest are 
filled out with correct information; 

(vii) Damage to private property: n/a; 

(2) Cost of rectifying any damage: n/a; 

(3) Amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance: economic benefits less than 
$5,000.00; 

(4) Previous record: n/a; 

ASSESSMENT MATRIX 

Nature and Degree MAJOR 
of Harm 

MODERATE 

MINOR 

Value from Assessment Matrix 
+ 
Multi-week/Event 
# of weeks/events x penalty 
+ 

Compliance History 
+ 1 0% per repeat violation 

Any other notations: 

Total penalty assessed 

Degree of Deviation from Requirements 

MAJOR 

$6,500-1 ,300 

$2,800-500 

$800-130 

= $400.00 

= nla 

= n/a 

= $400.00 

Date ' 1 
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MODERATE 

$5,200-1 ,000 

$2,000-300 

$400-130 

MINOR 

$3,800-700 

$1,300-200 

$130 
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Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Division of Waste Management 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

Regulation(s) Violated: 8.e., g. , h. , j. and q. of the Compliance Order 
Site Information: Hazardous waste codes: D002, 0004, 0005, D006, D007, D008, 0009, D01 0, 

and D011 
Distance to residences: Approximately 0.4 miles 
Number of people involved: Approximately 24 employees 

15A NCAC 13B .0702 - Civil Penalty Standards: 

Consider: (1) Nature of the violation and degree and extent of harm, including at least the 
following: 

(i) Type of violation: the facility failed to close satellite containers, mark each container with an 
accumulation start date, label or mark clearly each storage container with the words "Hazardous 
Waste", maintain aisle space of at least 2 feet to allow the unobstructed movement of personnel 
in an emergency; and inspect areas where containers are stored at least weekly; 

(ii) Type of waste involved: toxic wastes including corrosive liquids (d002), arsenic (D004), 
barium (D005), cadmium (D006), chromium (D007), lead (D008), mercury (D009), selenium 
(D01 0) and silver (D011) hazardous waste; 

(iii) Duration and gravity of the violation: duration is unknown; however, there was one (1) red 
piece of paper lying on the containers that had a date of 10/17/2013 with the comments to 
dispose of the phenol material; 

(iv) Cause (whether resulting from a negligent, reckless or intentional act or 
omission): negligent; 

(v) Potential effect on public health and the environment: yes; 
Media for Exposure: direct contact, air, surface water, ground water and soil; 
Human Health Effect: at high levels of exposure, arsenic is a potent human poison, causing 
gastrointestinal effects, such as nausea, vomiting, and abdominal pain, and neurological effects, 
including headache, lethargy, confusion, hallucinations, seizures, and coma. Chronic exposure to 
lower levels of arsenic causes effects on the skin, primarily keratosis and hyperpigmentation, and 
cardiovascular effects, such as high blood pressure and circulatory problems. Arsenic is also a 
known human carcinogen, causing an increase in lung cancer through inhalation exposure and 
an increase in skin, liver, kidney, lung, and bladder cancer through ingestion exposure (drinking 
water). Lead can damage the central nervous system, kidneys, and reproductive system. Risks 
increase as the concentration level of the contaminant increases. Exposure to mercury (and 
methyl mercury) may cause neurological impairment. Methyl mercury is more toxic than 
inorganic mercury. Dietary methyl mercury is rapidly absorbed into the blood and is distributed to 
all tissues. High dose human exposure may cause mental retardation, deafness, blindness, and 
sensory and motor impairment. Low doses may affect the heart and immune system. Methyl 
mercury readily passes through the placenta to the fetus and may cause neurological effects in 
the developing fetus; 
Effect on the Environment: plants may accumulate arsenic by uptake through the roots from the 
soil and certain species may accumulate high levels of arsenic. Fish may also accumulate 
arsenic from the surrounding water, with bottom feeders potentially accumulating greater 
quantities of the metal from sediments. Arsenic is mainly accumulated in the exoskeleton of 
invertebrates and in the livers of fish. Surface water impacts include acute toxicity to aquatic life. 
Delayed embryonic development, suppressed reproduction and inhibition of growth rate is noted 
in aquatic species. Mercury in the environment bioaccumulates in fish due to microbial 
processes that convert mercury into methyl mercury. Neurological effects in wildlife may occur 
from consumption of fish contaminated with methyl mercury; 
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Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
201 4-047 

(vi) Effectiveness of responsive measures taken by the violator: on July 8, 2014 a 
letter was submitted stating training occurred on May 1, 2014 to ensure containers are 
closed, accumulation start date are clearly marked and containers are marked with the 
words "Hazardous Waste"; 

(vii) Damage to private property: n/a ; 

(2) Cost of rectifying any damage: n/a; 

(3) Amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance: economic benefits less than 
$5,000.00; 

(4) Previous record: n/a; 

ASSESSMENT MATRIX 

Nature and Degree MAJOR 
of Harm 

MODERATE 

MINOR 

Value from Assessment Matrix 
+ 
Multi-week/Event 
# of weeks/events x penalty 
+ 
Compliance History 

+ 1 0% per repeat violation 

Any other notations: 

Total penalty assessed 

Degree of Deviation from Rec uirements 

MAJOR 

$6,500-1 ,300 

$2,800-500 

$800-130 

= $6,500.00 

= n/a 

= n/a 

= $6,500.00 

8 

MODERATE 

$5,200-1,000 

$2,000-300 

$400-1 30 

MINOR 

$3,800-700 

$1,300-200 

$130 
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Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Division of Waste Management 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

Regulation(s) Violated : 8.f. i. and I. of the Compliance Order 
Site Information: Hazardous waste codes: D001, D008, D022, U117, and U122 

Distance to residences : Approximately 0.4 miles 
Number of people involved: Approximately 24 employees 

15A NCAC 138 .0702 - Civil Penalty Standards: 

Consider: (1) Nature of the violation and degree and extent of harm, including at least the 
following: 
(i) Type of violation: the facility failed to inspect at least weekly the construction 

materials of the tank, and area immediately surround ing discharge confinement 
structures to detect erosion or obvious signs of leakage of the 2,000-gallon tank in the 
Flammable Materials Blending Area; they failed to maintain immediate access to 
communications or alarm systems in a less than 180-day hazardous waste storage 
area and make emergency arrangements with a local hospital. Also, they failed to 
ensure that all employees are thoroughly familiar with proper waste handling and 
emergency procedures, relevant to their responsibilities during normal facility 
operations and emergencies; 

(ii) Type of waste involved: waste flammable liquids (D001 ), lead (D008), chloroform 
(D022), ethyl ether (U117), and formaldehyde (U122); 

(iii) Duration and gravity of the violation: duration, degree of deviation and nature and 
degree of harm were evaluated to determine gravity; 

(iv) Cause (whether resulting from a negligent, reckless or intentional act or 
omission): negligent; 

(v) Potential effect on public health and the environment: yes ; 
Media for Exposure: direct contact, air, surface water, ground water and soil; 
Human Health Effect: at high concentrations these chemicals can cause irritation of the 
eyes, nose, and respiratory tract. They also cause effects on the central nervous 
system, such as headaches, dizziness, weakness, and fatigue. Long-term exposure to 
methyl alcohol (Methanol) results in a broad range of ocular effects, such as blurred 
vision and constricted visual fields, while long-term exposure to toluene results in 
effects on color vision, impaired hearing, and changes in motor and sensory nerve 
conduction velocity. Lead can damage the central nervous system, kidneys, and 
reproductive system. Low levels may cause adverse effects to a child's mental and 
physical growth. Risks increase as the concentration level of the contaminant 
increases; 
Effect on the Environment: the chemicals are toxic to fish and other aquatic organisms 
when present at high concentrations in water. Most of these chemicals will not 
bioconcentrate in aquatic organisms. Surface water impacts include acute toxicity to 
aquatic life. Delayed embryonic development, suppressed reproduction and inhibition 
of growth rate is noted in aquatic species. Human health hazards are associated with 
contamination of water supplies (where applicable) and consumption of aquatic 
organisms that have bioaccumulated lead. Contamination of soils and groundwater 
poses additional risks to plants and wildlife; 
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Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

(vi) Effectiveness of responsive measures taken by the violator: on July 8, 2014 a 
letter was submitted stating that an email was sent on July 2, 201 4 to the hospital for 
emergency arrangements, a phone was installed on March 21 , 201 4, training occurred 
on May 1, 2014; 

(vii) Damage to private property: n/a; 

(2) Cost of rectifying any damage: n/a; 

(3) Amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance: economic benefits less than 
$5,000.00; 

(4) Previous record : n/a; 

ASSESSMENT MATRIX 

Nature and Degree MAJOR 
of Harm 

MODERATE 

MINOR 

Value from Assessment Matrix 
+ 
Multi-week/Event 
# of weeks/events x penalty 
+ 

Compliance History 
+ 1 0% per repeat violation 

Any other notations: 

Total penalty assessed 

Degree of Deviation from Rec uirements 

MAJOR 

$6,500-1,300 

$2,800-500 

$800-1 30 

= $6,500.00 

= n/a 

= n/a 

= $6,500.00 

10 

MODERATE 

$5,200-1 ,000 

$2,000-300 

$400-1 30 

MINOR 

$3,800-700 

$1,300-200 

$130 
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Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Division of Waste Management 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

Regulation(s) Violated: 8.m ., n., o. and p. of the Compliance Order 
Hazardous waste codes: Used Lamps: D009 
Distance to residences : Approximately 0.4 miles 

Site Information: 

Number of people involved: Approximately 24 employees 

15A NCAC 138 .0702 - Civil Penalty Standards: 

Consider: (1) Nature of the violation and degree and extent of harm, including at least the 
following: 

(i) Type of violation: the facility had 30 used lamps stored in open containers, unlabeled 
boxes in the Finished Product Warehouse, broken lamps in one (1) of the containers, 
failed to demonstrate storage time of universal waste, was unsure of how long the 
lamps had been stored onsite and failed to provide universal waste training; 

(ii) Type of waste involved: universal waste lamps containing mercury D009; 

(iii) Duration and gravity of the violation: duration unknown, degree of deviation and 
nature and degree of harm were evaluated to determine gravity; 

(iv) Cause (whether resulting from a negligent, reckless or intentional act or 
omission): negligent; 

(v) Potential effect on public health and the environment: yes; 
Media for Exposure: direct contact, air, surface water, ground water and soil; 
Human Health Effect: exposure to mercury (and methyl mercury) may cause 
neurological impairment. Methyl mercury is more toxic than inorganic mercury. Dietary 
methyl mercury is rapidly absorbed into the blood and is distributed to all tissues. High 
dose human exposure may cause mental retardation, deafness, blindness, and 
sensory and motor impairment. Low doses may affect the heart and immune system. 
Methyl mercury readily passes through the placenta to the fetus and may cause 
neurological effects in the developing fetus; 
Effect on the Environment: mercury in the environment bioaccumulates in fish due to 
microbial processes that convert mercury into methyl mercury. Neurological effects in 
wildlife may occur from consumption of fish contaminated with methyl mercury; 
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Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

(vi) Effectiveness of responsive measures taken by the violator: prepaid recycling 
kits for the lamps were purchased and will be used when needed and universal waste 
training was conducted on Aug 1, 2014; 

(vii) Damage to private property: n/a; 

(2) Cost of rectifying any damage: n/a; 

(3) Amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance: economic benefits less than 
$5,000.00; 

(4) Previous record: n/a; 

ASSESSMENT MATRIX 

Nature and Degree MAJOR 
of Harm 

MODERATE 

MINOR 

Value from Assessment Matrix 
+ 
Multi-week/Event 
# of weeks/events x penalty 
+ 

Compliance History 
+ 1 0% per repeat violation 

Any other notations: 

Total penalty assessed 

Degree of Deviation from Re< uirements 

MAJOR 

$6,500-1 ,300 

$2,800-500 

$800-130 

= $800.00 

= n/a 

= n/a 

= $800.00 
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MODERATE 

$5,200-1 ,000 

$2,000-300 

$400-130 

MINOR 

$3,800-700 

$1 ,300-200 

$130 
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Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Division of Waste Management 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
201 4-047 

Regulation(s) Violated: 8.k. of the Compliance Order 
Site Information: Hazardous waste codes: D001, D002, D022, U117, and U122 

Distance to residences: Approximately 0.4 miles 
Number of people involved: Approximately 24 employees 

15A NCAC 138 .0702 - Civil Penalty Standards: 

Consider: (1) Nature of the violation and degree and extent of harm, including at least the 
following: 

(i) Type of violation: the facility failed to maintain a copy of the Land Disposal Restrictions 
form for hazardous waste streams sent to Ecoflo Inc.; 

(ii) Type of waste involved: waste flammable liquids (ether, chloroform) D001, D022, 
D002, U117, U122; Waste sodium nitrite D001 ; and waste flammable liquid corrosive 
(methanol, acetic acid) D001 , waste toxic liquid organic (dichloroemethane, methanol) 
U080, and waste corrosive liquid flammable D002; 

(iii) Duration and gravity of the violation: based a record review and information 
provided during the inspection, it was determined that the facility acted as a Large 
Quantity Generator during the months of January and February 2014. Hazardous 
waste manifests documented that the facility shipped more than 13,228 pounds of 
hazardous waste during February 2014. During January 2014 flammable products 
were managed as waste due to main water suppression pipe breakage. The amount 
shipped in a calendar month does not validate the facility's generator status as a SQG; 

(iv) Cause (whether resulting from a negligent, reckless or intentional act or 
omission): negligent; 

(v) Potential effect on public health and the environment: yes; 
Media for Exposure: direct contact, air, surface water, ground water and soil; 
Human Health Effect: exposure to chloroform in humans causes central nervous 
system depression. Chronic exposure to chloroform by inhalation in humans is 
associated with effects on the liver, including hepatitis and jaundice, and central 
nervous system effects, such as depression and irritability. At high concentrations 
these chemicals can cause irritation of the eyes, nose, and respiratory tract. They also 
cause effects on the central nervous system, such as headaches, dizziness, weakness, 
and fatigue . Long-term exposure to methyl alcohol (Methanol) results in a broad range 
of ocular effects, such as blurred vision and constricted visual fields , while long-term 
exposure to toluene results in effects on color vision , impaired hearing, and changes in 
motor and sensory nerve conduction velocity. Acute inhalation or dermal exposure to 
chloroacetic acid may cause severe damage to the skin and mucous membranes in 
humans. Chloroacetic acid irritates and may burn the skin, eyes, and respiratory tract. 
Depression of the central nervous system may occur in humans following acute 
inhalation exposure; 
Effect on the Environment: the chemicals are toxic to fish and other aquatic organisms 
when present at high concentrations in water. Most of these chemicals will not 
bioconcentrate in aquatic organisms. Tests involving acute exposure of animals in rats, 
mice, and guinea pigs have demonstrated chloroacetic acid to have extreme toxicity 
from inhalation and moderate to high acute toxicity from ingestion; 
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Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

(vi) Effectiveness of responsive measures taken by the violator: n/a; 

(vii) Damage to private property: n/a; 

(2) Cost of rectifying any damage: n/a; 

(3) Amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance: economic benefits less than 
$5,000.00; 

(4) Previous record : n/a; 

ASSESSMENT MATRIX 

Nature and Degree MAJOR 
of Harm 

MODERATE 

MINOR 

Value from Assessment Matrix 
+ 
Multi-week/Event 
# of weeks/events x penalty 
+ 
Compliance History 

+ 10% per repeat violation 

Any other notations: 

Total penalty assessed 

Degree of Deviation from Rec uirements 

MAJOR 

$6,500-1,300 

$2,800-500 

$800-130 

= $800.00 

= nla 

= n/a 

= $800.00 
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MODERATE 

$5,200-1 ,000 

$2,000-300 

$400-130 

MINOR 

$3,800-700 

$1,300-200 

$130 
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Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Division of Waste Management 
Hazardous Waste Section 

Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

Regulation(s) Violated: 8.r. of the Compliance Order 
Site Information: Hazardous waste codes: D001 , D002, D022, U117, and U122 

Distance to residences: Approximately 0.4 miles 
Number of people involved: Approximately 24 employees 

15A NCAC 138 .0702 - Civil Penalty Standards: 

Consider: (1) Nature of the violation and degree and extent of harm, including at least the 
following: 

(i) Type of violation: the facility failed to pay LOG fees; 

(ii) Type of waste involved: waste flammable liquids (ether, chloroform) D001 , D022, 
D002, U117, U122; sodium nitrite D001 ; and waste flammable liquid corrosive 
(methanol , acetic acid) D001 , waste toxic liquid organic (dichloroemethane, methanol) 
U080, and waste corrosive liquid flammable D002; 

(iii) Duration and gravity of the violation: based a record review and information 
provided during the inspection, it was determined that the facility acted as a Large 
Quantity Generator during the months of January and February 2014. Hazardous 
waste manifests documented that the facility shipped more than 13,228 pounds of 
hazardous waste during February 2014. During January 2014 flammable products 
were managed as waste due to main water suppression pipe breakage. The amount 
shipped in a calendar month does not validate the faci lity's generator status as a SQG; 

(iv) Cause (whether resulting from a negligent, reckless or intentional act or 
omission): negligent; 

(v) Potential effect on public health and the environment: yes; 
Media for Exposure: direct contact, air, surface water, ground water and soil; 
Human Health Effect: exposure to chloroform in humans causes central nervous 
system depression. Chronic exposure to chloroform by inhalation in humans is 
associated with effects on the liver, including hepatitis and jaundice, and central 
nervous system effects, such as depression and irritability. At high concentrations 
these chemicals can cause irritation of the eyes, nose, and respiratory tract. They also 
cause effects on the central nervous system, such as headaches. dizziness, weakness. 
and fatigue. Long-term exposure to methyl alcohol (Methanol) results in a broad range 
of ocular effects, such as blurred vision and constricted visual fields, while long-term 
exposure to toluene results in effects on color vision, impaired hearing, and changes in 
motor and sensory nerve conduction velocity. Acute inhalation or dermal exposure to 
chloroacetic acid may cause severe damage to the skin and mucous membranes in 
humans. Chloroacetic acid irritates and may burn the skin, eyes, and respiratory tract. 
Depression of the central nervous system may occur in humans following acute 
inhalation exposure; 
Effect on the Environment: the chemicals are toxic to fish and other aquatic organisms 
when present at high concentrations in water. Most of these chemicals will not 
bioconcentrate in aquatic organisms. Tests involving acute exposure of animals in rats, 
mice, and guinea pigs have demonstrated chloroacetic acid to have extreme toxicity 
from inhalation and moderate to high acute toxicity from ingestion; 
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Facility Name: 
EPA ld. Number: 
Docket#: 

Penalty Summary Worksheet 

Reagents Holdings, LLC 
NCR 000 007 591 
2014-047 

(vi) Effectiveness of responsive measures taken by the violator: the facility on April 
9, 2014 paid their balance of $1,400 for being a LOG; 

(vii) Damage to private property: n/a; 

(5) Cost of rectifying any damage: n/a; 

(6) Amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance: economic benefits less than 
$5,000.00; 

(7) Previous record : n/a; 

ASSESSMENT MATRIX 

Nature and Degree MAJOR 
of Harm 

MODERATE 

MINOR 

Value from Assessment Matrix 
+ 
Multi-week/Event 
# of weeks/events x penalty 
+ 
Compliance History 

+ 1 0% per repeat violation 

Any other notations: 

Total penalty assessed 

Degree of Deviation from Requirements 

MAJOR 

$6,500-1 ,300 

$2,800-500 

$800-130 

= $2,250.00 

= n/a 

= n/a 

= $2,250.00 
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MODERATE 

$5,200-1 ,000 

$2,000-300 

$400-130 

MINOR 

$3,800-700 

$1,300-200 

$130 
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